


 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  June 21, 2017 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
Public Works Committee Minutes 

June 21, 2017 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 
A regular Public Works Committee Meeting was held on June 21, 2017 at the council 
chambers of the City Hall, Bethel, Alaska. Joseph Klejka called the meeting to order at 
6:34 pm.  
 
II. ROLL CALL: 
Comprising a quorum of the committee, the following were present: Joseph Klejka, 
Jennifer Dobson, Robert Champagne, and Naim Shabani. 
 
Excused Absents: Public Works Director, Bill Arnold and Scott Guinn 
 
Also Present:  
Committee Recorder, Pauline Boratko 
 
III. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD: none 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
MOVED BY: Jennifer Dobson Motion to approve the agenda. 
SECONDED BY: Robert Champagne 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
MOVED BY: Jennifer Dobson Motion to approve minutes for April 19, 2017 

meeting.  SECONDED BY: Robert Champagne 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
MOVED BY: Robert Champagne Motion to approve minutes for May 17, 2017 

meeting. SECONDED BY: Naim Shabani 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
VI. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS: 
 
VII.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  

A. Institutional Corridor Piped Water Supply Project: no new updates this month 
B. Sewer Lagoon- PER (Preliminary Engineering Report) and ER (Environmental 

Report) for Truck Dump site and other options: No new updates this month 



 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  June 21, 2017 

C. Leveling of the Bethel Heights Water Treatment Plant Building: The building 
is off by 14 inches. The plan is to measure it again at the end of the summer 
to determine what step needs to be taken. 

D. Clarification of BMC Codes: no new updates this month 
E. Ridgecrest Drive Road Update: The plan is to have the road project 

compleated in August of 2018. 
F. Snow Removal from neighborhoods: no new updates this month 
G. Landfill closure and new landfill site: no new updates this month 

VIII.  NEW BUSINESS: 
 

IX. DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Director of Public Works, Bill Arnold was unavailable to 
give report.  

 
X.       MEMBER COMMENTS: 

Robert Champagne- no comment  
Jennifer Dobson- Thank you AVCP for hosting a disposal of electronics drive. 
Joseph Klejka- Thank you  
Naim Shabani- Thank you for your time you put into the committee.  

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT: 
MOVED BY: Jennifer Dobson Motion to adjourn.  
SECONDED BY: Niam Shabani 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote 

 
With no further business, meeting adjourned at 7:01 pm 
 
APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _____________, 2017.  
 
 
__________________________    ________________________ 
Pauline R. Boratko      Jospeh Klejka 
Recorder of Minutes      Chair      



 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  August 16, 2017 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
Public Works Committee Minutes 

August 16, 2017 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 
Due to the lack of quorum there was no regular meeting held on August 16, 2017 
 
II. ROLL CALL: 
The following were present: Joseph Klejka, Jennifer Dobson, and Scott Guinn 
 
Excused absence(s):Robert Champagne 
Unexcused absent: Mike Shantz  
 
Also Present:  
Committee Recorder, Pauline Boratko 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:45 pm due to lack of quorum.  
 
 
APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _____________, 2017.  
 
 
 
__________________________    ________________________ 
Betsy Jumper        Joseph Klejka 
Recorder of Minutes      Chair 



 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  September 20, 2017 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
Public Works Committee Minutes 

September 20, 2017 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 
A regular Public Works Committee Meeting was held on September 20, 2017 at the 
council chambers of the City Hall, Bethel, Alaska. Joseph Klejka called the meeting to 
order at 6:32 pm.  
 
II. ROLL CALL: 
Comprising a quorum of the committee, the following were present: Joseph Klejka, 
Jennifer Dobson, Robert Champagne, and Scott Guinn 
 
Unexcused Absent: Naim Shabani 
 
Also Present:  
Committee Recorder, Pauline Boratko 
Public Works Director, Bill Arnold 
 
III. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD: none 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
MOVED BY: Jennifer Dobson Motion to approve the agenda. 
SECONDED BY: Scott Guinn 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
MOVED BY: Jennifer Dobson Motion to approve minutes for June 21, 2017 

meeting.  SECONDED BY: Robert Champagne 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
MOVED BY: Jennifer Dobson Motion to approve minutes for July 19, 2017 

meeting. SECONDED BY: Scott Guinn 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
MOVED BY: Scott Guinn Motion to approve minutes for August 16, 

2017 meeting. SECONDED BY: Jennifer Dobson 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
VI. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS: 



 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  September 20, 2017 

 
VII.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  

A. Institutional Corridor Piped Water Supply Project: The bid went out to the BSI 
Contractors and they will start the project in February of 2018 and should 
take about 5-6 months to complete.  

B. Sewer Lagoon- PER (Preliminary Engineering Report) and ER (Environmental 
Report) for Truck Dump site and other options: Dredging is in process and 
the dump site will be rebuilt. 

C. Leveling of the Bethel Heights Water Treatment Plant Building: The building 
has stopped moving and is currently staying at 14 inches. 

D. Clarification of BMC Codes: no new updates this month 
E. Ridgecrest Drive Road Update: The plan is to have the road project 

compleated in August of 2018.  
F. Snow Removal from neighborhoods: no new updates this month 
G. Landfill closure and new landfill site: The landfill was inspected and is 

recommended to install shallow wells to test water. 
VIII.  NEW BUSINESS: 

 
IX. DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Director of Public Works, Bill Arnold reported that 

there will be a total of 15 new trucks replacing the hauled utilities fleet. For 
piping of the “avenues” a PER and ER has been submitted, and funds have 
already been applied for.  

 
X.       MEMBER COMMENTS: 

Robert Champagne- no comment 
Jennifer Dobson- City Elections October 3rd. 
Joseph Klejka- I can’t be here for the next meeting.  
Scott Guinn- no comment 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT: 
MOVED BY: Jennifer Dobson Motion to adjourn.  
SECONDED BY: Scott Guinn 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote 

 
With no further business, meeting adjourned at 7:31 pm 
 
APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _____________, 2017.  
 
 
__________________________    ________________________ 
Pauline R. Boratko      Joseph Klejka 
Recorder of Minutes      Chair      



 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 18, 2017 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
Public Works Committee Minutes 

October 18, 2017 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 
Due to the lack of quorum there was no regular meeting held on October 18, 2017 
 
II. ROLL CALL: 
The following were present: Jennifer Dobson, Robert Champagne, and Fred Watson 
 
Excused absence(s): Joseph Klejka 
Unexcused absent: Scott Guinn 
 
Also Present:  
Committee Recorder, Grant Kemp and Pauline Boratko 
 
Meeting adjourned at 5:45 pm due to lack of quorum.  
 
 
APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _____________, 2017.  
 
 
 
__________________________    ________________________ 
Grant Kemp         Jennifer Dobson 
Recorder of Minutes      Vice-Chair 



 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  November 15, 2017 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
Public Works Committee Minutes 

November 15, 2017 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 
Due to the lack of quorum there was no regular meeting held on November 15, 2017 
 
II. ROLL CALL: 
The following were present: Joseph Klejka, Jennifer Dobson, and Robert Champagne 
 
Excused absence(s): Scott Guinn 
 
Also Present:  
Ex-Officio Member, Bill Arnold 
Committee Recorder, Grant Kemp 
 
Meeting adjourned at 5:45 pm due to lack of quorum.  
 
 
APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _____________, 2017.  
 
 
 
__________________________    ________________________ 
Grant Kemp         Joseph Klejka 
Recorder of Minutes      Chair 



13.08.050 Ownership of facilities. 

All interceptors, pump stations, valves, fittings, outfall pipes, aeration equipment, and related 

facilities and appurtenances, except customer service lines, shall be the property of the city, 

unless otherwise provided by the council by written contract.   Customer owns everything 

leading from the main line(s) to the home, including, but not limited to, the grinder pump.  The 

City owns everything else.   

 

13.08.125 Service lines – Charges. 

While customer owns the grinder pump, the city will perform maintenance on grinder pumps used for the piped 

sewer system provided that: (a) customer does not block or deny access to the grinder pump and (b) customer 

remains responsible for charges assessed as a result of negligence.  The charges will only be assessed if 

repair is attributed to negligence, as determined by the public works utilities maintenance foreman. At the time 

the customer receives service to rebuild, repair or replace a grinder pump, the customer will be billed for the 

following charges in relation to the annual frequency with which a grinder pump is rebuilt, repaired or replaced: 

If the property that receives the repair or replacement is a multi-dwelling unit, then the person whom the water 

account’s name is in is responsible for the expense. 

A. First rebuild/repair/replacement per 

twelve (12) month period 

$50.00 

B. Second rebuild/repair/replacement 

per twelve (12) month period 

$225.00

C. Third and all subsequent 

rebuilds/repairs/replacements per 

twelve (12) month period 

$450.00

 

  



13.08.110 Interceptors and appurtenances. 

A. Ownership. All interceptors and other appurtenances of every kind constituting and used for the sewer 

system, except customer service lines, shall be the property of the city, and shall be installed by the department 

or the applicants, in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the department. 

B. Location. All interceptors and appurtenances constituting and used for the sewer system, except the 

customer service lines, shall be on rights-of-way, easements or public property. All easements or right-of-way 

permits secured for the sewer system shall be obtained in the name of the city. [Prior code § 11.12.050(3), (4).] 

Definition: 

H. “Interceptors” means all trunk, main and lateral sewer lines of every kind which are connected to and used 

for the collection of sewage from the customer service lines and its delivery to the sewage treatment plant, 

except customer service lines. 

 
Yahoo Answers: 
Interceptor sewers are usually your largest sewers, basically your downhill location where all other sewers 
flow. Sometimes, in the case of sanitary sewers, these can be pressurized pipes fed by a wet-well 
pumping system. Trunk lines are usually smaller but still act as collectors from even smaller sewers called 
laterals.  
 
In a purely gravity flow system, interceptor sewers will be the biggest and probably will be reinforced 
concrete pipe. Trunk sewers will be smaller, and may or may not be reinforced. Laterals can be a large 
variety of materials such as vitreous clay, cement or asbestos lined iron, ductile iron, etc.  
 
In a system where there is a "force main," typically the most downhill pipe will be lifted by a pump and 
undergo pressure flow. This will be a smaller diameter pressurized pipe made of ductile iron or some 
other very durable material (in terms of pressure.) These could be considered interceptors. While sanitary 
sewers may be moved using pressure flow, storm sewers are almost never (never that I've seen) 
anything but gravity.  
 
SO to answer your question, interceptor is the biggest, where trunk sewers will feed them. Depending on 
the size of the community feeding them a trunk could be say 24-36 inches in diameter for a sanitary 
sewer and 36-48 for storm, and an interceptor could be 36-48 for sanitary and 60+ for storm. In terms of 
flow, that is highly dependent on the pipe size, material and slope... 
 
Interceptor Sewers: Large sewer lines that, in a combined system, control the flow 
of sewage to the treatment plant. In a storm, they allow some of the sewage to flow 
directly into a receiving stream, thus keeping it from overflowing onto the 
streets. [infohouse.p2ric.org/ref/01/00402/iterms.html] 
 





MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:         12.01.2017 
TO:   Peter Williams, City Manager 
FROM:  Bill Arnold, Public Works Director 
SUBJECT:  Manager’s Report – 
 
Programs/Divisions 
 
Public Works Director:  
 
Hauled Utilities: 
  We have had shortage of drivers since I started November 9, 2017. In which we 
had a lot of overtime for drivers operating in adverse conditions. The weather has 
been unpredictable that has caused safety concerns for all drivers in which a few 
incidents have occurred. 
 
  We lost three drivers with two whom quit for another job offer and one whom got 
fired under instructions from my Supervisor. The driver has had incidents and 
accidents that costed the City Of Bethel a lot of money. 
 
  We had three applicants that applied for a job here with one that hasn’t showed up 
since he been hired out of Anchorage, Ak. One applicant whom got hired I haven’t 
heard from since his interview. And one that hasn’t returned my call for an 
interview. 
 
  We haven’t had incidents since the last driver was fired. I have been speaking to 
the drivers at The Safety Meetings in the morning. They have been watching 
Trucker Incidents under Target Solutions as well. 
 
  Even there has been a lot of paperwork involved at work I have been driving to 
help Drivers catch up with route sheets with paperwork still stacking for the next 
morning but all paperwork is done before I start driving. 
 
  A lot of updates are being done in the system and files that are still being updated 
daily since I started. And files I have started on the desktop for easy access even on 
paper. Everything is picking up over in this department so far. 
 
Utility Maintenance:   
 



 
Property Maintenance: 
For the current month of November Property Maintenance Crew has worked in 25 
work Orders and Emergencies calls; to maintain the City of Bethel buildings; I will 
describe some of the most important that the crew worked on it and have a Work 
Orders Report list attached. 
 
� Court House changed 20 filters at AHU-4 and AHU-5 and two valves. 
� Transit Services replace 4- Auto vents. 
� DA’s office need to replace new two bathroom faucets. 
� Port Office Building changed all door cylinders cores. 
� Fire Department Bay #1and #2 have problems. Chain was adjusted, censor 
need to keep clean from snow and ice. 
� Highway Lift Station was losing boiler pressure as a resulted of the 
circulation pump was not working, leaking seals and pressure valves that 
need to be changed. 
� Public Works Diesel fuel pump need it a new nozzle and filter. 
 
Parks and Recreation: 
The City of Bethel Parks and Recreation is closed for the season. Property 
Maintenance will periodically check the board walks, benches and picnic tables for 
repairs and prune or remove overgrown trees and shrubs. 
 
Road Maintenance: 
Streets and Roads has now been helping at the landfill as we have time by hauling 
landfill cover with the two roads maintenance dump trucks. We been hauling in 
cover to cover the trash and to a pile at the landfill to use latter.  
 
 Streets and Roads with all the rain that we had this last month, we had to sand the 
roads a lot with the sander truck in order to keep the roads from being to slippery. 
We also used a lot of gravel this mouth to keep the roads smooth as possible during 
the rain and before freeze up again.      
 
 Streets and Roads also graded the roads as much, as we can, but with all the rain, 
it would not hold up to grading, due to the roads being so wet, and muddy. 
However by keeping up with the weather during this last thaw, that it was going to 
freeze at 9:00pm on the 16th of November, we sent both graders out at 7:00pm to 
grade roads until to roads froze up to much to grade. By doing it during the freeze, 
the roads would hold up long enough for it to freeze up as smooth as possible.    
 



 
Vehicles and Equipment:  
Trucks in Trucks out. We have a Temp Mechanic working on an in frame for one 
of our vac trucks. CMI Has already had to come out to address some issues with 
our brand new trucks. We hired a new full time mechanic. As far as that things 
seem to be ok.    
 
Transit System: We've increased the number of passengers purchasing monthly 
passes the last three months, averaging 10-15/ month. Several of the local agencies, 
OCS and LKSD have been purchasing adult and youth passes, three or four LKSD 
teachers, several YKHC employees and then community members.  Our ridership 
is holding fast averaging between 90-120 per day. I hate to cancel buses because 
once you do that it takes several days for passengers to start using it again.  I think 
they lose trust and then we have to rekindle that trust. 
 
The month of November has been a busy month.  One of our full time drivers 
transferred to another department his replacement did not work out and the other 
full time driver had jury duty. When the full time driver was not on jury duty and 
Transit Manager filled in trying to keep both the Red Line and Green Line running 
according to the schedule. The ridership for the month was 1829; 310 elders, 127 
youth, 1392 adults/passes, and 164 with disabilities.   

Our buses are maxing out, the State, DOT, recommends that buses be phased out 
when they are five years old and/or 100,000 miles.  Our newest bus was purchased 
in October of 2014, three years old, but has 108,000 miles, Bus 438 our oldest and 
smallest bus was purchased in 2008, nine years old, and has 114,000 miles. Bus 
436, the diesel, was purchased in 2008, nine years old, and has 140,000 miles.  Bus 
437, diesel, was purchased in 2008, and has a bad motor and is not being used.    

We have put studded tires on buses 439 and 438.  Bus 438 has new studded tires 
and the studded tires on bus 439 were used last winter but still are good.  The bus 
stop shelter at Corina’s was ran “over” and smashed.  This spring, after the ground 
thaws, we will replace it with one that is not being used.  In the mean time, we 
have put the old wooden one back.  Thanks to the crew in Streets and Roads. 

 
 
Landfill / Recycle Center: 
The Landfill has been busy covering trash and stock piling for future use, with the 
help of the Streets and Roads Department. This is a neverending job. I really 



appreciate this department’s willingness to help with this huge ongoing job.  
We have been putting new bottoms on some of the old dumpsters, so we can 
continue to use them. 
 
 
Water Plant Operations: 
For the month of November we started to complete our Monitoring Summary 
reports for BHWTP and CSWTP to ADEC 2017 requirements. We also continue 
our monthly maintenance logs for both our water plants. We also continue to file a 
monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs). We also have our Water storage 
tank cleaning out to Bid. Also did an inspection with ARWA at the Police Dept. 
water system. It’s been a warm November. 
 
Staffing Issues/Concerns/Training:  
 
   
 


	PW Committee Agenda 122017 FINAL
	PW Committee Minutes June 2017-draft
	PW Committee Minutes  08.16.17- no meeting
	PW Committee Minutes Sept 2017-draft
	PW Committee Minutes 10182017 DRAFT
	PW Committee Minutes 11152017 DRAFT
	Sewer Lines
	DOC066
	Managers Report 12.1.2017

